
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, March 4, 2014 

7:00 P.M. 
Commission Chambers 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 

Posted: 2/26/14 
 

AGENDA 
 

The City of Traverse City does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to or 
treatment or employment in, its programs or activities. Makayla Vitous, Assistant City Manager, 400 
Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan 49684, 922-4440, T.D.D., 922-4766, has been designated to 
coordinate compliance with the non-discrimination requirements. If you are planning to attend and you 
have a disability requiring any special assistance at the meeting and/or if you have any concerns, please 
immediately notify the ADA Coordinator. 
 
Planning Commission 
c/o Russell Soyring, Planning Director 
400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, MI 49684 
231-922-4778 
 
1.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2.  ROLL CALL   
 
3.       ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial 
items together to be dealt with by one Commission motion without discussion. Any 
member of the Commission, staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent 
calendar be removed therefrom and be placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. 
Such requests will be automatically respected. If an item is not removed from the consent 
calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single 
Commission action adopting the consent calendar. 
 
A. February 4, 2014 Regular Meeting and February 19, 2014 Special Meeting minutes 

(Approval recommended) 
B. Consideration of an amendment to the Planning Commission Bylaws revised 

February 21, 2014 to change the Planning Commission meeting time from 7:00 p.m. 
to 7:30 p.m. (For introduction and possible action on March 18, 2014) 



Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 2 
 

C. Consideration of the City of Traverse City Six-Year Capital Improvement Program 
2014-2020. The Capital Improvement Program is a multi-year schedule for capital 
expenditures that includes costs, priorities, and identified funding for the next six 
years (For introduction and possibly schedule a Public Hearing for April 1, 2014) 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of a conditional rezoning request initiated by John Kerridge, Kerridge 
Architecture + Construction, Inc. of 400 West Front Street, to rezone the property 
located at 101 N. Madison Street from R1-b (Single Family Dwelling District) to C-1 
(Office Service District) with conditions (For introduction and possibly schedule a 
Public Hearing for April 1, 2014) 

B. Consideration of a rezoning request initiated by the Planning Department to rezone 
the property located 10597 East Traverse Highway from R-9 (A) (Multiple Family 
Dwelling Districts) to MU (Mixed Use PUD Morgan Farm) (Action requested) 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Lot D Boardman River Boatlaunch Project review for consistency with Master Plan 
(Action requested) 

B. West Front Street Bridge Project review for consistency with Master Plan (Action 
requested) 

C. Eighth Street Bridge Project review for consistency with Master Plan (Action 
requested) 

D. Pine Street Pedestrian Way Project review for consistency with Master Plan (Action 
requested) 

E. Homeless Shelter Regulations (Discussion) 
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE   
  
8. REPORTS 

A. City Commission- Commissioners Easterday and Werner 
B. Board of Zoning Appeals- Commissioner Bergman 
C. Grand Traverse Commons Joint Planning Commission- Commissioners Serratelli and 

Warren 
D. Planning Commission 

1. Housing Building Committee— Commissioners Bergman and Warren 
2. Active Transportation Committee—Commissioner Werner 
3. Master Plan Review Committee—Commissioners Bergman, Dow and 

Twietmeyer 
E. Planning Department—Mr. Soyring 

1. Capital Improvement Program—Chairperson Serratelli 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

MINUTES 
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
Tuesday, February 4, 2014 

7:00 P.M. 
Commission Chambers 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 

PRESENT: Vice-Chairperson Jody Bergman, Commissioners Michael Dow, Jeanine 
Easterday, Janet Fleshman, Cecil McNally, Chairperson John Serratelli, Bill 
Twietmeyer, Janice Warren (7:21 p.m.) and Tim Werner 

ABSENT: None. 
STAFF PRESENT: Russ Soyring, Planning Director; Missy Luick, Planning and Engineering 

Assistant 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER- The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Serratelli at 

7:00 p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL   
 
3. ANNOUNCEMENTS- Chairperson Serratelli explained that the Capital Improvement 

Program is not ready and will not be distributed today as planned. 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial 
items together to be dealt with by one Commission motion without discussion. Any 
member of the Commission, staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent 
calendar be removed therefrom and be placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. 
Such requests will be automatically respected. If an item is not removed from the consent 
calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single 
Commission action adopting the consent calendar. 
 
A. January 7, 2014 Regular Meeting and January 22, 2014 Study Session minutes 

(Approval recommended) 
B. 2014 Planning Commission Goals (Acceptance recommended) 

 
Motion by Commissioner Easterday, second by Commissioner Bergman, that the 
Consent Calendar be approved as presented. 
 
Motion carried 8-0 (Commissioner Warren absent.) 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS- None. 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 4, 2014 
Page 2              
 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Master Plan formal review- possible committee establishment 
 
Mr. Soyring stated that it has nearly been five years since adopting the City of 
Traverse City Master Plan. The State Act requires that the document be reviewed 
every five years and recommends establishing a formal committee to review the 
document and make a recommendation to the Planning Commission. 
 
Commission discussion. Commissioners Bergman, Dow and Twietmeyer 
volunteered to serve on the committee. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Bergman, second by Commissioner Werner, that the 
Master Plan Review Committee, a committee of the Planning Commission, shall be 
established with the goal to review the current City of Traverse City Master plan.  
 
Motion carried 8-0 (Commissioner Warren absent.) 

 
B. Madison and W. Front Development- discussion 

 
John Kerridge of 8141 Bel Cherie Dr (and business owner at 400 W Front) 
introduced a conceptual design for a project at the corner of Madison and West 
Front Street. Mr. Kerridge is considering requesting a conditional rezoning of the 
property from R1b to R2 and would build 4 single family homes 17-1800 sq. ft. with 
architectural features that complement the neighborhood. 
 
Commission discussion. 
 
Commissioner Warren joined the meeting at 7:21 p.m. 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE   

A. Capital Improvement Program Project Update  
B. Capital Improvement Program Draft (to be distributed at the meeting) 

  
8. REPORTS 

A. City Commission- Commissioners Easterday and Werner reported. 
B. Board of Zoning Appeals- Commissioner Bergman reported 
C. Grand Traverse Commons Joint Planning Commission- Commissioners Serratelli and 

Warren reported. 
D. Planning Commission 

1. Housing Building Committee— No report. 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 4, 2014 
Page 3              
 

2. Active Transportation Committee—Commissioner Werner reported. The 
draft Active Transportation Plan was distributed at the meeting. Any 
comments/feedback from the Commission are welcome. 

E. Planning Department—No report 
1. Capital Improvement Program—Chairperson Serratelli reported 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 

• Commissioner Werner made comments regarding following our landscaping 
standards in the zoning code for parking lots 

• Commissioner Warren has a standing meeting conflict for another board 
appointment. She requested that the Planning Commission consider moving our 
meeting time to 7:30 p.m. The Commission will consider the request and discuss it 
again at our next meeting. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT- Meeting was adjourned at 7:37 p.m. 
 
  
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Date: __________________________  ___________________________________ 

      Jan Warren, Secretary  



 
 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
WEDNESDAY, February 19, 2014 

7:00 P.M. 
Training Room 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 
PRESENT: Commissioners Jeanine Easterday, Janet Fleshman, Cecil McNally, 

Chairperson John Serratelli, Bill Twietmeyer, Janice Warren and Tim Werner 
ABSENT: Vice-Chairperson Jody Bergman, Commissioner Michael Dow 
STAFF PRESENT: Russ Soyring, Planning Director; Missy Luick, Planning and Engineering 

Assistant; Tim Lodge, City Engineer; Jered Ottenwess, City Manager; Rob 
Bacigalupi, DDA Executive Director; Tom Olney, Traverse City Light and 
Power; Blake Wilson, Traverse City Light and Power 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER- The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Serratelli at 

7:00 p.m.  
 
2. ROLL CALL   
 
3. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
4. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION) 

 
Mr. Soyring presented to the Planning Commission the projects within the Capital 
Improvement Program that are of interest to the Planning Commission. City Staff is in the 
audience and can answer technical questions or provide more insight into projects as we 
proceed through the presentation.   
 
Mr. Soyring began the presentation. 
 
Mr. Bacigalupi presented regarding Park Street Deck Entrance and Park Street 
Streetscapes. 
 
Mr. Lodge answered questions regarding the West Front Street to Oak Street Streetscape 
project. 
 
Commission discussion. 
 
Mr. Lodge answered questions related to sidewalk projects. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING 
February 19, 2014 
Page 2              
 

Commission discussion. 
 
Mr. Olney discussed the Transmission Line Reconductor Project regarding 
reconoductor/rebuilding of existing 69kv transmission lines along Hammond, Barlow, 
LaFranier, Cass, Wadsworth and Wayne Hill. 
 
Commission discussion, questions and dialogue occurred throughout the presentation.  
 

5. RE-ESTABLISH HOUSING AND BUILDING COMMITTEE (ACTION REQUESTED) 
 
Mr. Soyring briefly explained the history of the committee and the need to re-establish the 
committee due to a 2-year hiatus in committee meetings. 
 
Commission discussion. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Twietmeyer, second by Commissioner Werner, that the 
Housing and Building Committee, a committee of the Planning Commission, shall be 
re-established with the goal to recommend affordable housing options to the 
Planning Commission for their consideration. 
 
Motion carried 7-0 (Commissioners Bergman and Dow absent). 
 
Commissioners Bergman, McNally and Warren will serve on the committee along 
with a member of the Housing Commission and a citizen-at-large. 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

• Justin Reed, 630 Cottageview Dr, made comments regarding the Grand Traverse 
Commons Infrastructure project in the CIP 

• Emily Mitchell, 3716 Jefferson St, Garfield Township, made comments regarding the 
Transmission Line Reconductor Project in the CIP 

• Eileen Ganter, 1615 Randolph St, Garfield Township, made comments regarding the 
Transmission Line Reconductor Project in the CIP 

• Keila Ganter, 1615 Randolph St, Garfield Township, made comments regarding the 
Transmission Line Reconductor Project in the CIP 

• Commissioner Werner commented that the Hickory Hills Public Input Session and 
open house is tomorrow night, February 20th, here at the Governmental Center 2nd 
Floor from 5:00 p.m.-8:00 p.m. 

• Mr. Soyring asked the commission if they have considered the request from 
Commissioner Warren to change our meeting time from 7:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. 
Commission consensus was to move forward with the bylaw amendment to change 
our meeting time for both the regular meetings and study session meetings to 7:30 
p.m. 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING 
February 19, 2014 
Page 3              
 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT- Meeting adjourned at 8:17 p.m. 
 
 
  
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Date: __________________________  ___________________________________ 

      Jan Warren, Secretary  



Agenda Item No.   4 B  
 

              Communication to the Planning Commission  
             
  
      FOR THE MEETING OF:  MARCH 4, 2014 
 
      FROM:  RUSS SOYRING, PLANNING DIRECTOR 
 

SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS 
 
       DATE:  February 25, 2014 
 
 
At the February 19, 2014 meeting, the Planning Commission discussed the amended 
meeting time request proposed by Commissioner Warren and agreed that meetings 
beginning at 7:30 p.m. were desirable for the Planning Commission. To make that change, it 
requires that the Planning Commission amend its Bylaws. The Bylaws state that the draft 
changes are presented to the Commission in writing and then acted upon at a following 
meeting. The proposed changes are included in the packet for possible action on March 18, 
2014. 
 

   

RAS:mll 



PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS 
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
(Adopted December 13, 1988) 
(Revised December 6, 1994) 

(Revised August 9, 1995) 
(Revised January 19, 2000) 
(Revised August 23, 2000) 

(Revised June 6, 2007) 
(Revised May 7, 2008) 

(Revised January 7, 2009) 
(Revised September 9, 2009) 
(Revised November 1, 2011) 
(Revised November 25, 2013) 
(Revised February 21, 2014) 

 
PURPOSE:  
These Planning Commission Bylaws are adopted pursuant to the Traverse City Code to acquaint the 
people of Traverse City and persons appearing before the Commission with the operation of the 
Commission so that matters coming before this body can be handled in an understanding, prompt and 
efficient manner. 
 
I. AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION: 

The City Planning Commission derives its authority from the City Charter Section 160, which 
states AThe City Commission shall by ordinance establish and maintain a City Planning 
Commission having the powers and duties prescribed by State law;@ and the Traverse City 
Code (Chapter 1220).  That these laws state that the City Planning Commission shall have the 
powers and duties authorized and directed by the City Charter, the Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act of P.A. 12 of 2008 as amended, and the Michigan Planning Enabling Act of P.A. 33 of 
2008 as amended. This section also provides for establishing the membership of the 
Commission, the meetings of the Commission and grants the authority to the Commission to 
adopt rules and procedures for the conduct of their business. 

 
II. OFFICERS: 

A. A Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary shall be elected by majority vote of 
the members of the Commission every year at the first regular meeting in the month of 
January. 

 
Such other officers as are deemed necessary and advisable for the conduct of business 
shall be appointed as required and provided for by the Commission. 

 
B. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and shall appoint such committees as 

may be authorized by the Commission, and be an ex-officio member of such 
committees. 

 



The Chairperson, subject to these rules, shall decide all points of order or procedure 
unless otherwise directed by a majority vote of the Commission in the session at that 
time. 
 

C. The Vice-Chairperson shall preside and exercise all of the duties of the Chairperson in 
his or her absence.  Should neither the Chairperson, nor the Vice-Chairperson be 
present at a meeting, a temporary Chairperson shall be elected by a majority of the 
members present. 

 
D. The Secretary shall record the meeting minutes. 

 
E. In the event that an officer shall leave the Commission before the expiration of his or 

her term, the Mayor, City Commission or Mayor with City Commission approval shall 
appoint a new officer to serve out the remainder of his or her term. 

 
III. MEETINGS: 

A. All regular and special Commission meetings shall be open to the public. 
 

B. The regular meetings of the Commission shall be held on the first Tuesday of each 
month, except when such Tuesday falls on a legal holiday or conflicts with the City 
Commission meeting schedule. 

 
C. A special meeting of the Commission may be called by the Chairperson, the Vice-

Chairperson in the event the Chairperson is out of town, or any three members of the 
Commission.  Each member of the Commission must receive at least eighteen (18) 
hours notice as to the time, place and purpose of the meeting in writing, delivered or 
served personally at his or her usual place of residence, except that the announcement 
of a special meeting at a time at which all members are present shall be sufficient 
notice of such meeting. 

 
D. Study meetings may be held on the third Tuesday of the month, as called for by the 

Commission or Chairperson, except when such Tuesday falls on a legal holiday or 
conflicts with the City Commission meeting schedule. 

 
E. Meeting agendas shall be approved by the Chairperson.  The agenda shall be sent to 

the Commission no later than on the Friday preceding the regularly scheduled meeting. 
In unusual circumstances, items may be added to the agenda by the Chairperson prior 
to the meeting. 

 
F. A quorum of five (5) members must be present to constitute an official meeting of the 

Commission. 
 

G. All hearings shall be scheduled at the hour the meeting is scheduled to be. 
 

H. All regular meetings shall begin at 7:030 p.m. and no new items requiring action shall 
be taken after 10:00 p.m. unless otherwise determined at the meeting. 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 3  
 
 

I. The conduct of the Planning Commission business shall be governed by the current 
edition of Robert=s Rules of Order unless otherwise modified by law, ordinance, or 
these rules of the Planning Commission. 

 
IV. VOTES: 

The concurring vote of a majority of members present at a regular or special meeting shall be 
necessary to pass on any matter referred to them.  The adoption of a master plan, or of any 
such part, amendment, extension or addition shall require the concurring vote of six (6) 
members of the Commission. 

 
V. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 
 

Upon disclosure of a conflict of interest the member shall be disqualified from voting on the 
matter at issue. 

 
A. Appearance of Conflict.  An appearance of a conflict exists when a reasonable person 

would believe that because of certain facts a Planning Commissioner's participation in 
a proceeding would create an appearance of impropriety, partiality, bias or lack of 
fairness. 

 
B. Contractual Conflicts of Interest. The conduct of City officials and employees in 

relation to conflicts of interest involving contracts shall be as established by State law. 
 

C. Financial Conflict of Interest. An official or employee who has a financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in any matter to be decided by the City, other than with respect to a 
contract, shall make that interest known and shall refrain from voting upon or 
otherwise participating in the making of the decision. Violation of this subsection with 
the knowledge, express or implied, of the person or corporation dealing with the City 
shall render the decision voidable by the City Manager or the City Commission. Any 
official or employee violating the provisions of this subsection shall be deemed guilty 
of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction shall forfeit office. A financial conflict of 
interest may be waived by the City Commission after full disclosure of such conflict to 
the Commission. Unless otherwise provided by law or ordinance, the remaining 
members of the Commission in a unanimous vote may rule that the best interests of 
the City are to be served by removing the prohibition on voting and participating in the 
matter.  

 
VI. PROCEDURE: 

A. All inquiries, applications or matters requiring official action by the Commission 
which is not specifically mentioned below shall be submitted in writing at the offices 
of the Planning Department.  This must be done at least seven (7) days prior to the 
meeting of the Commission at which consideration is requested. 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 4  
 
 

B. Requests for rezoning subdivision approvals, Special Land Use Permits and Planned 
Unit Developments shall be filed on application forms obtained from the Planning 
Department. 

 
C. Rezoning, Special Land Use Permit, Planned Unit Development, subdivision approval, 

lot split and alley and street vacationing requests shall be submitted at least seven (7) 
days prior to the meeting for introduction before the Commission.  If the Commission 
finds the submission complete, then a public hearing date shall be scheduled to 
consider the request. 

 
D. The Commission and/or the Planning Director may require such surveys, plans or 

other information as may be reasonably required by said Commission for the proper 
evaluation or consideration of the matter. Written documentation from the petitioner 
should be presented to the Commission which will give full information as to the 
intentions of the petitioner, as well as a legal and informal description of the property 
in question. 

 
E. In the event that sufficient data has not been furnished, the Commission shall table the 

matter until such time as the required information has been furnished. 
 

F. All proceedings, decisions and resolutions of the Commission shall be initiated by 
motion.  The vote upon motions and resolutions may be recorded by roll-call vote.  All 
members, including the Chairperson, may vote on each motion. 

 
G. In the event a petitioner requests that his or her item be tabled, after it has been 

published, noticed and scheduled, the public hearing may be held to allow interested 
citizens an opportunity to speak to the request, then tabled to a specific future meeting 
and scheduled in sequence on the agenda. 

 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. The primary function of the public hearing process is the gathering of information 
through public testimony and written documentation.  The nature of the evidence 
received during this process will in many cases require further careful consideration to 
assure a logical and just decision.  The Commission shall therefore determine at each 
public hearing the meeting date at which a decision will be rendered. 

 
B. The applicant or the applicant=s authorized agent must be present at the public hearing 

to properly answer questions concerning the request.  If the applicant or agent is not 
present, the request may be tabled until the next meeting or dismissed at the discretion 
of the Commission. 

 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 5  
 

C. The Commission shall hold a public hearing on any proposed amendment to the 
zoning ordinance or zoning map.  Official notice for the Commission public hearings 
shall comply with the requirements and procedures established by Section 1320.04 of 
the City Code of Ordinances.  The Commission shall recommend approval or denial of 
the amendment, and shall transmit, in writing, its recommendation to the City 
Commission for official action. 

 
D. The Commission shall hold a public hearing on any proposed City Commission 

authorized Special Land Use Permit.  The official notice of public hearing shall 
comply with Section 1364.04, of the City Code of Ordinances.  The Commission may 
recommend denial, approval or approval with conditions after said hearing and 
notification as provided herein.  Its recommendation shall be incorporated in a 
statement of conclusions specifying the basis for the recommendation and any 
conditions imposed, which statement shall be transmitted to the City Commission for 
official hearing and action. 

 
E. The Commission may hold a public hearing with such notice as it deems advisable for 

Planned Unit Developments.  After review by the Commission, it shall submit a 
written recommendation to the City Commission. 

 
F. In the case of lots splits resulting in the creation of a new buildable lot, the 

Commission may in its discretion hold a public hearing on the matter and make a 
recommendation to the City Commission for appropriate action. 

 
G. The Commission may hold a public hearing with such notice as is deemed advisable 

for public street and alley vacations and openings.  After review by the Commission, it 
shall submit a written recommendation to the City Commission. 

 
H. The Commission will not reconsider any request on which a negative decision has 

been rendered within one (1) year from the date of the Commission=s decision on the 
request unless it can be shown by the petitioner that substantial new information 
affecting the request which was not presented to the Commission at the previous 
hearing(s) is now available and would affect the original decision rendered.  Said 
substantial new information shall be described in writing by the applicant at the time 
of application.  Before re-hearing the request, the Commission shall decide whether 
there is substantial new information allowing the new hearing. 

 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT AT REGULAR MEETINGS.  The Planning Commission welcomes 

public comment and has prescribed the following to facilitate the conduct of public business. 
 

A. Public Comment during Agenda Items.  Any interested person wishing to address the 
Planning Commission regarding an Agenda Item may do so during discussion of an 
agenda item prior to action recognized by the presiding officer or upon request of any 
Commissioner.  All persons must identify themselves and their address and direct their 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 6  
 

comments to the Commission.  The comment of any member of the public or any 
special interest group may be limited in time to five minutes except as provided in 
subsection (D).  As part of its deliberation, the Planning Commission may clarify, 
answer questions and ask questions as a result of public comment. 

 
B. Public Comment during the designated Public Comment Section - General.  Any 

interested person wishing to address the Planning Commission regarding other matters 
may do so under the designated Public Comment section.  All persons must identify 
themselves and their address and direct their comments to the Commission.  The 
comment of any member of the public or any special interest group may be limited in 
time to five minutes except as provided in subsection (D).  Questions posed may be 
answered at the meeting or may be referred to staff for response at a later time. 

 
C. Public Comment during the designated Public Comment Section - Planning 

Commissioners.  Planning Commissioners interested in making a public comment may 
do so under the designated Public Comment section.  Further, Planning 
Commissioners may briefly respond for clarification purposes as a result of public 
comment. 

 
D. Order and Duration of any Public Comment.   The presiding officer shall control the 

order and duration of any public comment subject to appeal.  The presiding officer 
shall have the authority to limit and terminate any public comment that becomes 
disruptive, unduly repetitive, or impedes the orderly progress of the meeting.  Items 
not appearing on the agenda will not be acted upon by the Planning Commission 
except in accordance with these rules. 

 
IX. AMENDMENTS: 

A. These bylaws may be amended or modified provided that such amendment or 
modification is presented in writing at a meeting, and that favorable action is taken 
thereon at a subsequent meeting. 

 
B. Six (6) members of the Commission by due motion and recorded vote may suspend or 

vary the application of these rules to a particular application, case, problem or 
proceeding pending before the Commission. 

 
X. PLANNING COMMISSION POLICIES FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION TO THE 

 NEWS MEDIA: 
 The Commission will provide information to the news media in the following manner: 

 
A. Upon request, the agenda of a specific meeting will be sent out to the various news 

media at the same time they are sent to the Commission. 
 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 7  
 

B. The news media should be advised that if they do not attend the meeting, they can call 
the Secretary the morning after the meeting, and he or she will advise them of the 
action which was taken by the Commission. 

 
C. Upon request by the news media for a specific Commission meeting, the minutes for 

that meeting will be provided to the requesting party. 
 

D. At such time as the Commission may invite in outside experts, or for study sessions 
which relate to some major program which may be evolving, the Secretary may notify 
the news media of such a meeting and request their presence if directed by the 
Commission.  This will enable the news media to obtain this background information 
in the same fashion as the Commission, thereby enabling them to have a better basis 
for reporting future actions of the Commission relative to the proposed programs. 

 
I hereby certify that the above 
document was adopted by the Traverse 
City Planning Commission at their 
March 18, 2014, Special Meeting. 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Jan Warren, Secretary 
Traverse City Planning Commission 

 



         Agenda Item    4C  
 
  Communication to the Planning Commission  
             
  
 
    FOR THE MEETING OF:  MARCH 4, 2014 
 
        FROM:  RUSS SOYRING, PLANNING DIRECTOR 
 

  SUBJECT:  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 
         DATE:  FEBRUARY 25, 2014 
 
The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) draft was included in the February 19, 2014 Planning 
Commission packet.  Some minor changes have been made since then, but does not warrant 
reprinting the spreadsheet and narrative documents.  The Planning Commission will receive 
revised CIP documents for the April 1, 2014 meeting. 
 
At the February 19, 2014 Planning Commission meeting, staff presented on CIP projects that 
are of interest to the Planning Commission. Various department heads were in attendance to 
offer input and comment.  
 
The CIP is before the Commission once again, to possibly schedule a public hearing for April 1, 
2014.  
 
If you feel that you have enough information to set a public hearing for the Capital 
Improvement Program, the proposed motion would be appropriate:  
 

I move that a Public Hearing be scheduled for April 1, 2014 to consider the City 
of Traverse City Six-Year Capital Improvement Program 2014-2020. The Capital 
Improvement Program is a multi-year schedule for capital expenditures that 
includes costs, priorities, and identified funding for the next six years. 

 
 
 
RAS/mll 



Agenda Item No. 5A  
 

              Communication to the Planning Commission  
             
  
      FOR THE MEETING OF:  MARCH 4, 2014 
 
      FROM:  RUSS SOYRING, PLANNING DIRECTOR 
 

SUBJECT: CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST FOR PARCEL LOCATED AT 
101 N. MADISON (NW CORNER OF WEST FRONT STREET AND 
MADISON STREET)  

 
       DATE:  FEBRUARY 26, 2014 
 
Earlier this month, John Kerridge, architect representing the owner Kemal Cinaroglu, informally 
introduced a proposed residential project at 101 N. Madison Street.   The proposal is to build four 
single-family detached dwellings with a single driveway access from Madison Street.  The site is 
currently vacant and is adjacent to residential houses to the north, east and west.  Offices are 
located to the south.    

The property is currently zoned R-1b (Single Family Dwelling) which would allow for three 
conforming residential lots.  The request is to conditional rezone the property to C-1(Office Service) 
to allow four dwellings.  C-1 is sought because it allows narrower the lot widths, shallower front and 
side yard setbacks and higher impervious limits.   

The Master Plan designates this area as a TC-3 (Traditional) neighborhood where the focus in on 
historic patterns with residential scale.  The Plan states this neighborhood type is moderate intensity 
residential areas.  Single family detached dwellings, moderate density with some multi-family 
dwellings and home occupations are appropriate.   The recently adopted Corridors Master Plan 
indicates this property provides an opportunity for six or seven townhomes. 

The single family and multiple family zoning districts (R-2, R-9 and R-15) are consistent with the Core 
Principles of the Master Plan according the Zoning Element (please see page 8).  

Rezonings and conditional rezonings are legislative decisions and should to be based on sound 
planning principles. The following questions are appropriate when considering rezonings: 

1. Is the current zoning reasonable for the land?  

2. Is the rezoning request consistent with the goals polices and future land use plan of the 
Master Plan?  

3. Would the property size and environmental conditions accommodate the proposed use? 



Page 2 of 2 

4. Are four modest sized single family detached 1 ½ story dwellings compatible with the 
surrounding uses?   

5. Are there adequate utilities and capacity on the adjacent streets to serve a commercial   
building of this size?   

6. Are there sufficient demands for a financial institution?   

If you feel that there is sufficient information to consider the conditional rezoning request, 
the following motion would be appropriate: 

I move that the request by John Kerridge, Kerridge Architecture and Construction, 
Inc., of 400 West Front Street, to conditional rezone the property located at 101 N 
Madison Street from R1-b (Single Family Dwelling District) to C-1 (Office Service 
District) with conditions be introduced and scheduled for a public hearing on April 
1, 2014. 

RS 

 

























    
 Agenda Item No. 5B  

 

  Communication to the Planning Commission 
 
FOR THE MEETING OF:  March 4, 2014 
 
                FROM:  Russ Soyring, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: Conditional Rezoning Reversion for 10597 East Traverse 
Highway 

 
                 DATE:  February 26, 2014 
  
On December 3, 2013 the Planning Commission scheduled a public hearing to begin a 
reversionary process to change the zoning at 10597 East Traverse Highway from R-9 (Multiple 
Family Dwelling) to R-1b – Mixed Used PUD Morgan Farm. This action was prompted by a 
request from Michael Dakoski, Vice President of Traverse City State Bank to cancel the 
conditional rezoning so a new conditional zoning request could begin. Traverse City State Bank 
holds the deed for the property.  
 
At the January 7, 2014 Public Hearing, representatives of Traverse City State Bank requested 
that no action be taken to change the current zoning so that the interested developer for the 
property could make formal submission to MSHDA for financing in February.  A MSHDA 
application requirement includes a letter from the City that stating that the project has zoning 
and site plan approval in place for the project. The Planning Commission held the Public 
Hearing on the matter on January 7, 2014, but deferred taking action until the March 4, 2014 
meeting. 
 
Subsequently, the interested developer for the project backed out of the project. The Bank has 
indicated that there is a current back-up offer on the property. It is the recommendation of 
staff, to move forward with the conditional rezoning reversion for the parcel because a new 
developer could not have the project 75% complete by May 2014 when the current conditional 
rezoning agreement would terminate. 
 
If you agree with the recommendation from staff, the following motion would be appropriate: 
 

I move that the zoning change request initiated by the Planning Department to rezone the 
property located 10597 East Traverse Highway from R-9 (A) (Multiple Family Dwelling 
Districts) to R1-b MU (Mixed Use PUD Morgan Farm) be recommended for approval and 
such recommendation be forwarded to the City Commission for their consideration. 

 
 
RAS/mll 



    
 Agenda Item No. 6A-D  

 

  Communication to the Planning Commission 
 
FOR THE MEETING OF:  March 4, 2014 
 
                FROM:  Russ Soyring, Planning Director 
 

 SUBJECT: Project Review for Consistency with Master Plan for: Lot D 
Boardman River Boatlaunch Project; West Front Street 
Bridge Project ; Eighth Street Bridge Project ; Pine Street 
Pedestrian Way Project  

 
                 DATE:  February 26, 2014 
 
Pursuant to the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the Planning Commission is being asked to 
determine if the following projects are consistent with the Traverse City Master Plan in terms of 
location, extent and character:    
 

• Lot D Boardman River Boatlaunch Project 
• West Front Street Bridge Project 
• Eighth Street Bridge Project 
• Pine Street Pedestrian Way Project  

 
Staff finds the Projects to be compliant with the Master Plan. A more detailed assessment of 
how the projects fit the Master Plan will be provided at the meeting. 
 
If you agree with this assessment, the following motions would be appropriate: 
 
I move that the Lot D Boardman River Boatlaunch Project is found to be consistent with the 
City Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character. 
 
I move that the West Front Street Bridge Project is found to be consistent with the City 
Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character. 
 
I move that the Eighth Street Bridge Project is found to be consistent with the City Master 
Plan in terms of location, extent and character. 
 
I move that the Pine Street Pedestrian Way Project is found to be consistent with the City 
Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character. 
 
Attachments 
 
RAS/mll 
  





























    
 Agenda Item No. 6E  

 

  Communication to the Planning Commission 
 
FOR THE MEETING OF:  March 4, 2014 
 
                FROM:  Russ Soyring, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: Regulations for Homeless Shelters 
 

                 DATE:  February 26, 2014 
  
 
The City of Traverse City recently received a proposal by Safe Harbor, a non-profit group, to use 
a City-owned building for a homeless shelter at the south end of Wellington Street.  A homeless 
shelter is not listed as a permitted use or as a discretionary use (Special Land Use Permit) in any 
zoning district.  
 
The Zoning Code permits “Transitional Housing” by Special Land Use Permit in HR, C-1, C-3, H-1 
and H-2 districts and “Residential Care and Treatment Facilities” by Special Land Use Permit in 
R-9, R-15, R-29, HR, C-1, C-3, H-1 or H-2 districts. (Please see Section 1320.08 for definitions for 
these uses.) 
 
Depending on how the homeless shelter is operated, it may or may not be considered a 
residential care and treatment facility or transitional housing use.  When the proposed 
homeless shelter was initially presented to the City, the facility would provide overnight stays 
only.  In the morning, clients would pack up and leave the premise with their belongings.  
Transitional Housing and Residentially Care and Treatment Facilities are facilities where the 
clients are able to leave their belonging on premise and have assigned room or bed for a 
number of consecutive nights.  
 
Although a particular site has been suggested for a homeless shelter, the Planning Department 
has been asked to have the Planning Commission provide recommendations for appropriate 
locations and regulations for homeless shelters.  Staff has collected ordinances from other 
communities that regulate homeless shelters.  
 
As a starting point, I suggest we start with a definition of a homeless shelter so we are all 
talking about the same type of facility.  For convenience, I will use the definition from Santa 
Ana, California’s zoning code which reads: 
 
Emergency Shelter for Homeless 
 
“Housing with minimal supportive services for homeless persons that is limited to occupancy of 
six months or less by a homeless person, where no individual or household may be denied 
emergency shelter because of an inability to pay”. 
 
  



 
Here are some questions or statements to ponder: 
 

1. Allow by right or by Special Land Use Permit?  What districts? 
2. Separation criteria. Proximity to other shelters and other uses. 
3. Occupancy.  Limit on the number of beds.  Length of stay (hours, days).   
4. Limit on months of the year to be available to the homeless. 
5. Supportive Services (laundry, bathrooms, showers) 
6. Proximity to public transit. 
7. Staffing levels with experience in managing or providing social services.  On site 

supervision at all times when clients are on premise. 
8. Connected sidewalks network in area. 
9. Building design (interior, exterior) 
10. Recreational area, useable yard area, screening. 
11. Possession of weapons, illegal drugs or alcohol. 
12. Outdoor lighting.   
13. Parking requirements (bike racks, etc.) 

 
Based on the discussion, staff will begin drafting an ordinance for homeless shelters.  It is a legal 
use, so it is appropriate to address the use in the Zoning Code. 
 
 
 
 
RS 
 
 


	2014_0304PlanningAgenda
	2014_0204PlanningMinutes
	2014_0219PlanningMinutesSpecial
	Bylaw amendments
	2-21-14
	CIP2014 Set Public Hearing
	Conditional Rezoning Request West Front
	101 N Madison St. Cond Rezoning Application Package
	MX-2300N_20140227_125832
	MX-2300N_20140227_125946

	CondtionalRezoning Reversion M-72 Action requested
	Project Review Consistency with Master Plan
	Lot D Boatlaunch Tim Lodge
	Front St Bridge Engineering
	Eighth Street Engineering
	Pine Street Ped Way
	Homeless Shelter Regulations

